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Tough Break for California Employers on Meal and Rest
Periods

Employers no longer need to anxiously await the California Supreme Court’s decision in Murphy
v. Kenneth Cole Productions, 40 Cal.4th 1094 (2007). On April 16, 2007, the Court held that
the additional hour of pay imposed under California Labor Code §226.7 for missed meal or rest
periods is a “wage” subject to a three-year statute of limitations. Employers are liable for back
wages equal to one hour’s pay for each work day the company fails to provide compliant meal
and/or rest periods extending back three years. However, employers should be prepared that the
three-year statute of limitations will be extended in litigation to four years by employees simply
alleging a violation of Business and Professions Code §17200.

The case emanated from a complaint by John Murphy, a former retail store manager in San
Francisco for Kenneth Cole. Murphy had been classified as exempt from overtime and not only
worked long hours on the sales floor, but also regularly ate meals at his desk while answering
phone calls and e-mails.

After Murphy quit his job, he filed a Labor Commissioner claim alleging he was nonexempt from
overtime and thus due overtime and waiting time penalties. The Labor Commissioner ruled in
favor of Murphy, finding he was a nonexempt employee. Kenneth Cole appealed the ruling. On
appeal de novo to the Superior Court, Murphy was allowed to raise new claims including whether
he was owed compensation for missed meal and rest periods. Murphy prevailed but the Court of
Appeal held he was due only one year of pay for the missed meal and rest periods. Both sides
appealed to the California Supreme Court.

The Supreme Court held that additional, but related, wage claims not presented by Murphy in the
administrative proceeding before the State Labor Commissioner could be considered by the trial
court when it conducted a de novo trial.

Unlike the court below, the Supreme Court also found, as noted above, that the one hour’s pay in
Labor Code § 226.7 is a “wage” and not a “penalty,” which would have been subject to only a one-
year statute of limitations. In determining that the additional hour of pay is a “wage” subject to a
longer statute of limitations period, the Court has raised the cost of noncompliance with
California’s regulations mandating meal and rest periods during the workday by not only
increasing the monetary exposure to employers, but likely increasing the growing trend of class
action lawsuits alleging missed meal and rest periods.

In reaching its decision, while the Court acknowledged that Section 226.7 was enacted, in part, to
shape employer conduct by deterring meal and rest-period violations more akin to a penalty, the
Court found that Section 226.7’s primary purpose is to compensate employees for their injuries in
not being provided with compliant meal and/or rest periods. Following that reasoning, it focused
on the statutory language in determining that the payments constitute wages, especially as to the
use of the word “pay” in the statute and its plain language meaning as being consistent with the
Labor Codes’ definition of a wage. The Court indicated that since the payment under that section
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is tied to an employee’s hourly rate, it gave the appearance of compensation for hours worked, rather than a penalty.

The Court’s opinion also discussed the legislative history of the revisions to Section 226.7. Those revisions eliminated a
requirement that employees file claims for such payments thus making the payment due immediately upon a violation of the
statute. According to the Court, the immediate entitlement distinguishes the Section 226.7 payments from a typical penalty
because the right to a penalty vests only when an individual pursues an enforcement action. The revisions also included the
deletion of penalty provisions to be paid to the Labor Commissioner, thus strengthening the Supreme Court’s opinion that the
payment in Section 226.7 is a wage, not a penalty.

Impact: As an initial matter, employers should assume all employees are nonexempt unless they clearly meet a specific
exemption and should consult legal counsel in making these determinations. For nonexempt employees, employers must keep
accurate time and payroll records of times in and out for meal periods for a minimum of four years. If an employer discovers
that an employee missed a meal period(s), pay the employee the one hour wage under §226.7 immediately as it would regular
wages, keeping a record of the additional payment as due to a missed meal and/or rest period(s). Similarly, if an employee
misses one or both rest breaks required by law, pay the additional one hour wage immediately.

Unanswered Questions: The Court did not address nor determine if the employee is entitled to one or two hours of pay
when the employee misses two meal breaks in a day. It is significant to note, however, that, at this point, the California
Division of Labor Standards Enforcement has indicated it will enforce the provisions as requiring a payment of only one hour of
pay per day for missed rest periods, no matter how many in a day, leading to a maximum penalty of two hours pay per day for
both missed meal and rest periods. This position may change, however, and employees should continue to consult legal
counsel for updates. Nor did the Supreme Court determine if the catch-all penalty applicable to all provisions of the Labor
Code is recoverable in addition to the premium wage for meal or rest period violations.

Employee’s Privacy on Office Computer Trumped by Warrantless FBI Search

In United States vs. Ziegler, 474 F.3d 1184 (9th Cir. 2007), the Ninth Circuit Court of Appeals ruled that although an
employee had a reasonable expectation of privacy with regard to personal information stored in an employer-issued computer
in the employee’s office, a search of the information without a warrant pursuant to an FBI request was legal because the
employer consented to the search. The FBI requested the search after a representative of the employer notified the FBI that
the computer had child pornographic material and that it had been used for searches using phrases that included “pre-teen
girls” and “underage girls”. The search was conducted by employee representatives of the employer who entered the
employee’s office at night and copied the computer’s hard disk drive, a copy of which, along with the computer, was provided
to the FBI.

In the criminal proceeding against him, the employee claimed that the warrantless search of his computer violated his Fourth
Amendment right against unreasonable searches and seizures and requested that the Court suppress the information so that it
could not be used as evidence against him. In denying the request, the Court relied on an exception that the government may
conduct a search without complying with the Fourth Amendment warrant requirement if the government obtained valid consent
for the search. The Court determined that the employer’s consent for the search of the computer that resulted in locating the
pornographic material constituted a valid search because the employer had “common authority” over the computer and the
employee’s office.

Impact: Employees have a right of privacy with regard to personal information stored in a computer at their workplace.
However, this right is limited if the computer belongs to the employer or the employer otherwise has authority over its use.
This authority provides the employer with certain rights to search information stored in the computer without the employee’s
consent. Given the limitations to employees’ privacy rights over information stored in their employer-issued computers,
employers should include in their employee handbooks a policy notifying their employees that personal information in their
computers may be searched at any time without their consent.
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IRCA Does Not Preempt California Employment Laws that Forbid Employers
From Discharging Employees Without Good Cause

In Incalza v. Fendi North America, Inc. (2007), the Ninth Circuit Court of Appeals held that California employment laws as
applied to former employee Giancarlo Incalza, an Italian national, were not preempted by Immigration Reform and Control Act
(IRCA).

Fendi employed Incalza for 13 years to work in the United States on an E-1 visa secured with Fendi’s assistance. While Incalza
was working in the United States, French nationals purchased a majority interest in Fendi. Because of the change in ownership
of Fendi, its immigration attorney advised the Company that the E-1 visas issued to Italian nationals were no longer valid.
Rather than granting Incalza’s request for an unpaid leave of absence during which time he was planning to marry his fiancée,
an American citizen, which would give him green card eligibility, or supporting him in an application for an H1-B visa, Fendi
terminated Incalza telling him falsely that nothing could be done to remedy his visa problems. Incalza then wrote to Fendi
asking that he be given his job back once his visa issue was resolved. Fendi refused.

Incalza filed a lawsuit alleging that he was wrongfully terminated (1) in violation of an implied contract that he would be fired
only for good cause; and (2) because of his Italian heritage, in violation of the Fair Employment and Housing Act. At trial,
Incalza introduced evidence that Fendi’s policy is not to terminate employees without good cause; that the custom in the
fashion industry is not to terminate employees without good cause; that Incalza was employed by Fendi for 13 years; and that
Fendi management gave Incalza oral assurances of continued employment. After a jury trial, Incalza was awarded $1,088,440
for damages on the implied contract claim, but decided in favor of Fendi on the discrimination claim.

While Federal law forbids employers from knowingly employing unauthorized aliens, the Ninth Circuit affirmed the trial court’s
determination and held that Incalza was not terminated because of his unauthorized employment status under IRCA, but rather
Fendi’s reason for terminating Incalza was without good cause and constituted a breach of his implied contract for continued
employment. The Ninth Circuit reasoned that had Fendi followed federal immigration laws, it could have placed Incalza on an
unpaid leave giving him time to resolve his unauthorized employment status. Instead, Fendi falsely told Incalza that there was
nothing that could be done to remedy his visa problems. The Ninth Circuit further held that California law did not conflict with
federal law and that it was possible to comply with and satisfy the purposes of both.

Impact: Employers should consult with immigration counsel before terminating employees who either are working pursuant to
a visa or whose visa status has lapsed. It is recommended that employers advise employees of the honest, rather than a
pretextual, reason for the employee’s discharge.

No Retaliation Where Firefighter With Prosthetic Leg Denied Firefighting
Duties

In Malais v. Los Angeles City Fire Department ___ Cal. App. 4 th ___ (2007), the California Court of Appeal held that the
City of Los Angeles did not discriminate or retaliate against a fire captain who lost a leg in the line of duty by assigning him to
a training position rather than to command a fire station with platoon duty.

The Court of Appeal ruled that loss of “work, schedule, and camaraderie of platoon duty” is not equivalent to the loss of pay or
promotional opportunities that have been held to constitute adverse employment actions under the California Fair Employment
and Housing Act (“FEHA”). Relying on the California Supreme Court’s decision in Yanowitz v.L’Oreal USA, Inc. (2005) 36 Cal.
4th 1028, which held that an “adverse employment action” consists of discrimination regarding compensation, terms,
conditions, or privileges of employment and disparate treatment in employment, specifically requiring people to work in a
discriminatorily hostile or abusive environment, the Court upheld the trial court’s grant of summary judgment that Malais
suffered no adverse employment action. By relying exclusively on the Yanowitz standard for retaliation, the Court of Appeal did
not refer to the United States Supreme Court decision in Burlington Northern & Santa Fe Ry, Co. v. White (2007), which applied
the less stringent deterrence test in a Title VII lawsuit.

Impact: Employers face increasing claims of retaliation in California courts. As such, employers are wise to analyze retaliation
claims using the appropriate legal standard. As the Malais case demonstrates, these claims can be defensible.
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Employers Cannot Compel Employees to Use Vacation For Jury Service

In In re: Heritage Propane, 2007 WL 433290 (E.D. Tenn. 2007), a Tennessee Court held that employers may not compel
employees to use vacation pay for jury service. This was the warning the Court gave to an employer whose policy required its
employees to take personal vacation time for their jury service time. The Court ordered the employer to show cause why it
should not be held in contempt after it required one of its employees who had served on a jury for 15 days during a nine-month
term to take personal vacation days for his absence from work. Ultimately, the Court did not hold the employer in contempt
because the employer “acknowledged its mistake and assured the Court that the employee’s vacation time had been restored.”
The Court stated, in part, that jurors have the right under Federal law to be “free of intimidation or reprisal” by their private
employers for jury service. The Court specifically referenced the Federal statute, 28 U.S.C. § 1875 (a), which states in pertinent
part, “[n]o employer shall discharge, threaten to discharge, intimidate, or coerce any permanent employee by reason of such
employee’s jury service.”

Impact: The Court’s opinion reminds employers of the importance of jury service and the special attention required when
adopting policies that may negatively affect the benefits accorded to employees for their jury service. California law does not
require an employer to continue an employee’s wages while he serves either as a juror or a witness. California Labor Code §230
(g) permits an employee to use vacation, personal leave, or compensatory time off that is otherwise available to the employee for
jury service.

For more information please contact:

Alyce A. Rubinfeld is a Partner in the Labor and Employment Group and practices in Musick, Peeler & Garrett’s Ventura County
office. Ms. Rubinfeld has represented employers over the last 20 years in all facets of employment law including compliance,
counseling, training, and litigation. She was formerly a shareholder of the national firm of Epstein Becker & Green. Ms. Rubinfeld
can be reached at (805) 418-3116 or by e-mail at a.rubinfeld@mpglaw.com.

Juan A. Torres is Partner in the Litigation and Labor and Employment Groups and practices in Musick, Peeler & Garrett’s Los
Angeles office. Mr. Torres has extensive experience as an employment, commercial and insurance defense litigator. He is a
regular speaker on current employment law topics for the California Continuing Education of the Bar. He is fluent in Spanish.
Mr. Torres can be reached at (213) 629-7873 or by e-mail at j.torres@mpglaw.com.
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